
Town of Gilmanton, New Hampshire 

Gilmanton Planning Board 

Academy Building, 503 Province Road 
PO Box 550 

Gilmanton, New Hampshire 03237 
planning@gilmantonnh.org 

Phone: (603) 267-6700 – Fax: (603) 267-6701  
 
 

 

Wayne Ogni, Chair 

Marty Martindale, Vice Chair 

Bill Mahoney, Member 

Roy Buttrick, Member 

John Weston, Member 

Justin Caldon, Member 

Steve McCormack, Alternate 

Steve McWhinnie, Selectmen Rep 

Mike Jean, Alt Selectmen Rep 

Mark Fougere, Certified Planner 

Diane Marden Planning Admin  

MINUTES OF 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2016 

ROLL CALL 

The Gilmanton Planning Board met on Thursday, September 8, 2016. Chairman Wayne Ogni 

called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. introduced himself as well as the Board. Members 

Present: Roy Buttrick, Bill Mahoney, Marty Martindale, Steve McCormack, T. Justin Caldon, and 

Selectmen’s Representative Steve McWhinnie.  Also present was Diane Marden, Planning 

Administrator and Annette Andreozzi, Land Use Administrator.  Member John Weston was not 

present at this meeting.  Others present included: Brenda Currier, Barbara Swanson, and 

Leonard Swanson. 

Minutes of August 11, 2016 

Chairman Ogni asked committee members to review the minutes of August 11, 2016. Marty 

Martindale made the motion to accept the minutes of August 11, 2016. The motion was 

seconded by Steve McWhinnie. Motion passes on a vote of 7-0. 

Zoning Review Recommendations 

Annette Andreozzi, Land Use Administrator explained some of the changes she will recommend 

to the board are relative to the Zoning Ordinance. Ms. Andreozzi stated some of the changes 

needed are because of the changes that have occurred within the state legislature.  Ms. 

Andreozzi explained the format of the handouts presented to the board so they could follow 

along with her presentation. 

Outdoor Shooting Ranges (NOT IN ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Ms. Andreozzi explained one of the most recently discussed has been shooting ranges. Ms. 

Andreozzi commented that the Planning Board needed to decide what zones an outdoor public 

shooting range should or should not be permitted in. 

 

 



 

PB 09/08/2016  Page 2 of 5 

 

(Outdoor Shooting Ranges Continued) 

Steve McCormack asked Ms. Andreozzi what is the definition of an Outdoor Public Shooting 

Range? Land Use Administrator Andreozzi stated it would be a shooting range that operates for 

the purpose of making a profit or charging money.  

Planning Board Decision: Shooting Range (CUP) for rural, conservation, Lt. Business, Business 

Districts. 

Agricultural Building (NOT IN ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Ms. Andreozzi stated the next one is Agricultural Building which relates to entirely something 

else and is why we need a new definition in the current Zoning Ordinance.  Suggested 

definition: “Agricultural Building- structures used for and located on the land used for: care of 

livestock, production & storage of fruit, vegetables, & plants, production of maple syrup, 

greenhouses for the production of legal plants, and other uses directly related to the agriculture 

of the lot.”  

Planning Board Decision:  Agricultural (CUP) Business District. 

Offices (greater than 2,000 sq. ft.) (NOT IN ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Ms. Andreozzi explained currently we have Offices (less than 2,000 sq. ft.) and do not have 

anything for Offices (greater than 2, 000 sq. ft.) therefore how do we get them into a building 

larger than 2,000 sq. ft. Ms. Andreozzi stated it is up to the Planning Board to decided what 

districts it will be or not be allowed in. Andreozzi continued to say she would think it would be 

permitted in the light business and business districts explaining it would need to go to the 

planning board regardless for the details. Steve McWhinnie asked if these were 

recommendations?  Ms. Andreozzi stated “Yes, they are recommendations.” 

Planning Board Decision:  Offices (CUP) Village, Rural, Conservation, Lt. Business, Business 

Districts. 

Dwelling, Two-Family (IN ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Land Use Administrator, Annette Andreozzi stated to planning board members that they may 

have heard of auxiliary dwelling units which has to be allowed throughout if they meet certain 

conditions.  Steve McCormack asked how the definition was created? Ms. Andreozzi stated the 

black part of the definition is what the ordinance currently says, and the blue is a suggestion 

but can be written however the Planning Board sees fit.  

Planning Board Decision:  Dwelling, Two Family (P) all Districts 



 

PB 09/08/2016  Page 3 of 5 

 

Residential Lake District (IN CURRENT ORDINANCE) 

Ms. Andreozzi stated the Residential Lake District is currently in the ordinance explaining the 

word “accessory” is not, and the word “only” should be removed to help clarify the definition. 

Ms. Andreozzi asked that the board vote on this technicality at this time.  Chairman Ogni stated 

this information will be sent to the Town Planner, Mark Fougere for his review prior to voting 

on any of these changes. 

Dwelling, Two-Family Continued Discussion 

After a great deal of discussion on defining the definition of a Dwelling, Two-Family, it was 

decided to discuss this in greater detail at the October 13, 2016 meeting. Justin Caldon asked 

Annette Andreozzi why the Town of Gilmanton has not reached out to other communities who 

may have already done this work in order to clarify or review different views that may fit into 

our community. Ms. Andreozzi stated maybe Mark Fougere the Town Planner could reach out 

to do that. 

Sanitary Protection 

Land Use Administrator, Andreozzi stated the primary purpose of this ordinance is to increase 

the number of septic systems in a Town with a large amount of old housing stock, which have 

no NHDES approved septic. To improve the quality of ground water, lakes, rivers, and wetlands. 

Ms. Andreozzi explained the Town can not go around asking people to put in a septic should 

they not have one, but the state on the other hand may due testing of the ground in areas 

where something seems to be bubbling up find it to be sewage and make them put in a septic. 

Mr. Andreozzi stated she would like it if the planning board would think about this along those 

lines when making a determination in this area as many on the lake may or maynot have 

adequate septic systems. Chairman, Ogni asked Marty Martindale if he had worked on this with 

Ms. Andreozzi? Mr. Martindale stated he had worked on it with her, and believes some can be 

a bit simplified, and a lot of it is in lawyer terminology although he prefers it to be simple. 

Signs 

Ms. Andreozzi explained that some of the problems have stemmed from putting things in 

different locations within the Zoning Ordinance. Ms. Andreozzi continued to say there are two  

types of signs and the definition of each should be known. Ms. Andreozzi stated she made some 

changes to the ordinance, and did a little reorganizing to make it flow easier. Ms. Andreozzi 

stated again these are suggestive, and wording will depend on what the planning board wishes 

to do on each item. Roy Buttrick commented that no signs permitted on Town Property without  



 

PB 09/08/2016  Page 4 of 5 

 

(Signs Continued) 

the permission on the Board of Selectmen. Ms. Andreozzi stated currently the ordinance does 

not state anything. Bill Mahoney commented that he was charged fifteen years ago for his sign. 

Ms. Andreozzi stated rules say it is $200 for a business sign currently. 

Business Directional Sign 

Land Use Administrator, Annette Andreozzi stated currently the Planning Board does not have 

anything pertaining to Business Directional Signs in its Site Plan Regulations. Ms. Andreozzi 

explained she believes it is cleaner leaving out most of the wording as she has indicated on the 

handout. Chairman Ogni stated he has a problem with people putting signs up all over Town 

without them regulated. Mr. Ogni stated whomever wants to put a sign up, must come to the 

planning board for approval.  Marty Martindale inquired about the “lighting” is in the site plan 

regulations, but believes it should be in the Zoning Ordinance also under signs. Ms. Andreozzi 

stated “yes, that is true.” Vice Chairman, Martindale suggested that it be incorporated into the 

sign area of the Zoning Ordinance stating these sign issues will progress over time. 

Chairman Ogni thanked Ms. Andreozzi for her presentation of the proposed Zoning Ordinance 

Recommendations. Rick Buttrick commented that she did a real nice job with her presentation. 

Land Use Administrator, Annette Andreozzi exits the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 

OLD BUSINESS- Gilmanton Winery Updated Site Plan Review 

Chairman, Ogni stated the Planning Board will skip over the Gilmanton Winery Updated Site 

Plan Review until Marshal Bishop can be present. Ms. Marden stated Mr. Bishop did call to say 

he was unable to attend tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Ogni read aloud a letter from Attorney Paul 

Fitzgerald, and handed the letter to the Planning Administrator, Diane Marden to have it placed 

in the file. 

RIGHT-TO-KNOW REQUEST BRENDA & BRETT CURRIER RE: SIGN APPLICATIONS 

Chairman Ogni asked if the right-to-know request is relative to the signs. Brenda Currier stated 

she is not sure if the proper paper work was filled out. Mrs. Currier explained she had spoken to 

Louise Knee prior to Diane Marden taking on the Planning Board Administrator position, and 

was told by her that there was a sign packet that needed to be completed before going to the 

Planning Board. Mrs. Currier went into the Office’s to pick up the sign packet, and to no avail it 

could not be found all though the staff looked endlessly for it. Mrs. Currier stated she then 

asked Ms. Marden to contact Louise Knee to locate the packet, and she did so. Ms. Knee  

 



 

PB 09/08/2016  Page 5 of 5 

 

(Sign Application Continued) 

responded back to her stating there was no sign packet.  At that point Mrs. Currier stated she 

was confused about the process. Mrs. Currier explained that between Heidi Jackson-Rhine and 

Diane Marden it had been determined to fill out a building permit, crossing out the word 

“building” and writing “sign” in its place.  Mrs. Currier stated she has brought her sign permit 

along with a print out of the sign which will measure 3’x3’, it will be placed within the required 

set backs, and the sign will be constructed out of PVC. Mrs. Currier said she had not paid the 

$200 fee, as usually the sign is usually incorporated into a site plan.  If the sign were to go in the 

right-of-way, Mrs. Currier stated she would have to call the State of N.H. to get permission. 

Chairman Ogni stated the sign should be within the setbacks, and the fee should only be $50 for 

a sign. Mr. Ogni stated if it is put in the right-of-way, Mrs. Currier would need to contact the 

State of N.H. 

Roy Buttrick made the motion to accept Mrs. Currier “sign permit” to construct a 3’x3’ sign, 

constructed of PVC, sign placement shall abide by all setbacks on Tax Map 127 Lot 034, 

contingent upon paying a $50 application fee prior to erecting the sign. Marty Martindale 

seconded the motion. Motion passes 7-0. 

(8:55 p.m. Brenda Currier, Barbara Swanson, and Leonard Swanson exit the meeting) 

Correspondence 

Planning Administrator, Diane Marden handed Chairman Ogni a file of correspondence. Mr. 

Ogni stated the correspondence file contains information pertaining to information sent to the 

Planning Board relative to training programs offered by the state and/or other agencies. 

Other Business 

Notice of Decision for Bear Investments Application # 203-2016 was signed by Chairman Wayne 

Ogni. 

Adjournment 

Vice Chairman Marty Martindale made the motion to adjourn at 9:00 p.m. Justin Caldon 

seconded the motion. Motion passes 7-0. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Diane Marden, Planning Administrator 
Authorized by _________________________  Date:_______________________ 
Wayne Ogni, Chairman 


